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LOCUST GRCVE CHAS-55
(The Bryan Farm) :

#7: Descriptions

Locust Grove is situated at the north end of a private road
approximately one and three-tenths miles in length that is entered
from the east side of Maryland Route 227 (Marshall Hall Road),
about one-half mile south of the terminus of Route 227 at Marshall
Hall.

The two-story center section and a one story, formerly detached
kitchen constitute the oldest parts of this rambling frame house,
with various additions dating from the early and mid-nineteenth
century and the mid-twentieth century.

Three bays in width and retaining most of its exterior sheathing
of beaded, random width clapboards, thetwo-story main block was
initially of a side hall-single parlor floor plan with a brick,
exterior chimney at the east end. A one story, shed-roofed porch
extending the full width of the north, front elevation appears to
be an original feature, as do the nine-over-nine pane sash windows
of this same elevation. The entrance door and transon@® is framed
by an entablature of simple classical styling that was probably
added at a later date. Most of the original interior woodwork of
the first floor hall and adjacent parlor is of a simple, basic
design typical of rural farmhouses of this period, although the
parlor mantgél later relocated to another room, is of somewhat more
sophisticated early-tederal styling. The kitchen, lccated akout
twenty feet east of the main block and positioned at a right angle
to it, may initially have been connected to the house by a hyphen or
breezeway. While the north end chimney of the kitchen is contained
within the building, the back wall of the chimney base, its stepped
shoulders and narrow stack, is exposed and framed by the exterior
siding, an unusual feature for this area. Charleston, built by
Daniel Jenifer in about 1830, is the only other house in Charles
County known to have a chimney end of similar desian. The kitchen
chimney houses a low, arched fireplace opening with a built-in oven
above, the latter fitted with an iron door.

It is believed that the original house was enlarged in the early
nineteenth century by a one story, shed-roofed addition with an
exterior chimney at the east end that was built across the south
side of the main block. This extension provided a second, rear
parlor and additional hall area. A one story, one room wing, later
raised to two storys, was added to the east chimney end of the main
block at this same time. Containing a fireplace connected to the
east chimney of the main block, and a narrow winding stair in the
northeast corner, the east wing had a shed~roofed porch at the east
end (later enclosed) connecting the house to the kitchen. A circa
1870 photograph of Locust Grove shows the house to have included at
that time the two story main block and the one story east and south
additions. Few alterations of the house occured between circa 1870
and its purchase by the present owners in 1949 except the enlargement
of the east wing by a shed-roofed addition on the north side, and
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the installation of a bay window (since removed) on the south side
of the south addition. Alterations and additions made subsequent
to its acquisition by the present owners include the raising of the
east wing to two storys and the renovation of the kitchen, the
enclosing of the porch connecting the house to the kitchen, the
addition of a two-part west wing basically similar in design to the
renovated east wing, and construction of a detached, one story
apartment off the west end that is positioned at a right angle to
the house.

Located within 200 feet of a high bank and the shoreline of
the Potomac River, Locust Grove has a superb view of George Washington's
home, Mt. Vernon, on the opposite side of the river. About 250 feet
east of the house is a small cemetery containing the graves of two
members of the Webster family and Eleanor (Bryan) Cawood.
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Locust Grove began as. a two-story, three-bay frame house with
a semi-detached kitchen wing at the east end. Believed to have been
built in about 1800, it was enlarged in the early nineteenth century
by one story additions at the east end and across the south side of
the main block. Subsequent additions include a mid-nineteenth
century shed across the north side of the east wing, and a mid-
twentieth century, two-part west wing. Early details include attractive
Federal-style mantles, nine-over-nine pane window sash, and beaded,
random width exterior siding. Both older parts of the house, as well
as the south addition, retain their original exterior chimneys.
Although most of the kitchen chimney is contained within the building,
the rear wall of the chimney, including its stepped shoulders and
narrow stack, 1is exposed and framed by the exterior siding. This same
chimney contains a low, arched fireplace and a built-in oven.

The oldest parts of Locust Grove were probably built by Josias
Marshall, who inherited the property, then 250 acres, from his father,
Thomas Marshall, Jr., the latter a nephew of Thomas Hanson Marshall I
of nearby Marshall Hall.l The 250 acres owned by Josias Marshall
consisted of a 150 acre tract made up of parts of Carrick, The Pas-
ture Enlarged and The Mistake. The original tracts were acquired
by William Marshall II, grandfather of Thomas Marshall Jr. Although
they were subdivided into smaller parcels, a major portion of the
acreage passed from William Marshall II to his son, Thomas lanson
Marshall I and remained in the owvnership of several generations of
Thomas Hanson Marshalls as part of the vast Marshall Hall estate.

The remaining 100 of Josias Marshall's 250 acres was part of a tract
calleqd Charley that was granted to Randolph Hanson (the name is some~
times given as Randle Hinsen) in 1663.< The 100 acres of Charley
descended to Josias Marshall from his great-—grandmother3 a daughter
of Randolph Hanson and the wife of William Marshall II.

In 1820 William Washington Webster (died 1835 and buried at Locust
Grove) purchased for $4,800,00 the 250 acres of Josias Marshall‘s
estate from Wasiington Francis Lancaster and his wife, Priscilla
Maria Beale Lancaster, Marshall's daughter and heir.4 The Websters,
who enlarged the earlier Marshall house, lived on the property until
1849 when Mary Webster, widow of William Webster, sold the
remaining 228 acres, by then referred to as Locust Grove, to Oliver
Norris Bryan.

A batchelor whose family had lived in the Marshall Hall area since
the late-eighteenth century, Oliver N. 3Bryan lived at Locust Grove
and devoted most of his adult life to farming, often employing new
and often experimental agricultural techniques. His broad range of
interests extended into other sciences as well. Many of his writings
on the subjects of botany, ornithclogy, pisciculture and geology,
as well as records of his archeological investigations of local Indian
burial and villuge sites, are preserved in the collections of the
Smithsonian Institute in Washington, D.C. Appointed by the Governor



LOCUST GROVE v CHAS-55
#83 Statement of Significance '
Page Two

of Maryland in the late 1880's as a delegate to a Farmer's Con-

vention in St. Louis and once a greenback candidate for Congress
from Maryland's Fifth District, Bryan is said to have been a man
of "kindhearted Christian manner, although he, like others, had

enemies made because of his fearlessness in expressing his con-

victions."®

Following Bryan's death in 1891, Locust Grove, also known as
The Bryan Farm, passed in ownership to his nephew, George R.
Bryan, son of Oliven N. Bryan's brother, Richard W. Bryan. In
1925 the property was surveyed and subdivided into four parts and
distributed among the children of George R. Bryan.’/ In 1926 the
property was sold by the Bryan heirs.8 The present owners purchased
the house and 86 acres in 1949.° Easements on the farm and surrounding
lands are now held by the Department of the Interior as part of the
Piscataway National Park that was established to preserve the view
of the Maryland shoreline opposite the Potomac River from Mt. Vernone.

Footnotes:

1. Land Records, Charles County Courthouse, La Plata, Maryland. Liber
IB#13, folio 394,

2. Hall of Records, Annapolis, Maryland. Patents: Liber L#5, folio
434,

3. Ibid. Willsst Liber WK#3, folio 210. (See also Deed IB#13, folio 394

4. Land Records, Charles County. Liber IB#13, folio 394.

S« Deedss Liber WMi#3, folio 320.

6. Charles County Public Library. Scrapbook of clippings from the
Maryland Independent newspaper. 1887-1894, Obituary of Oliver

: Norris Bryan, July 17, 1891.

7. Land Records, Charles County. Liber WMA#45, folio 443,

8. Ibid. :

9., Liber PCM#88, folio 491,
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